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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 

212 South Lake Drive, Suite 503 
Lexington, SC  29072 

(803)785-8166 Fax (803)785-2240 
 

AMENDMENT OF PROPOSAL 
AMENDMENT NO. : ONE    ISSUE DATE:  AUGUST 11, 2014 
 

SOLICITATION NO.: P15001-08/28/14H  DATED: JULY 28, 2014     
   
PROJECT: Banking Services  
 

MODIFICATIONS & CLARIFICATIONS: 
 

1. Incorporate Q&A {9 pages (2-10)} into solicitation document.  
2. Remove pages 11, 12, 16, and 19 & replace with REVISED pages 11, 12, 16, and 19. 
3. Analysis Statements (5 departments) - Attachments 
4. The proposal due date remains the same: August 28, 2014 - 4:00pm EST 

 

Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this amendment by one of the following methods: (a) By signing 
and returning one copy of this amendment with your bid; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this 
amendment on each copy of the bid submitted; or separate letter which includes a reference to the 
solicitation and amendment numbers.  Failure of your acknowledgment to be received at the Purchasing 
Office prior to the hour and date of the opening may result in rejection of your offer.  If by virtue of this 
amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by letter, provided 
such letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment and is received prior to the opening 
hour and date specified. 
 
 

                          
 
CONTRACTOR: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAME & TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE______________________________ 
 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________ 
Jeffrey A. Hyde, CPPB 
Procurement Manager
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Solicitation P15001-08/2814H     Banking Services RFP 
 
 
Q: Is the Pre-Proposal meeting mandatory? If so, can we attend by phone? If so, what is the 

number to call in on? 
A: No, the meeting is not mandatory and a phone call system has not been scheduled for 

this meeting. 
 
Q: Regarding the two ATM’s requested in the RFP (County Administration Building and 

Judicial Center), do these simply need to be cash dispensing ATM’s or do they need to be 
full-service ATM’s with the ability to accept cash and check deposits, etc ?  

A: In Section 5.2.11, we indicate that they are cash disbursement ATM’s. Full Service  
 machines are not required at this time. 

 
Q: I have a question regarding the RFP.  The term of the contract states: The County of 

Lexington is soliciting competitive proposals to establish a term contract for providing 
and delivering services and/or commodities listed herein. The term of the contract shall 
be for a five (5) year period with the option to extend an additional three (3) years. The 
County of Lexington may extend the contract if it appears to be in the best interest of the 
County and is agreeable with the contracted  vendor.  Is a three (3) year contract, with 
annual re-pricing agreement acceptable to the County? 

A: The County is considering/evaluating the three (3) year initial term contract and annual    
      pre-pricing. The Committee will address these issues during the pre-proposal 

meeting. 
 
Q: Section 3.14.00 Payment Terms (page 9) 
 Is the County looking to have a comprehensive combined analysis including all 
 departments within the County?  If not, please explain how the County would like the           
 billing to be handled for each department. 
A: Yes, the County would like a comprehensive combined analysis that includes all 
 departments. However, the combined analysis should be grouped by department.    
            Any fees not covered under compensating balances will need to be debited to the   
            originating bank account.  
 
Q: Can the County clarify the annual average ledger balance for each department? 
A: The average ledger balance is the average closing account balance over twelve months                          
 for all bank accounts associated with the individual departments. 
 
Q: Section 4.5.00 Term of Contract/Option to Extend (page 11) 
 Could the County clarify the contract term?  Page 11 references a term of five years with          
 three options to renew, but page 28 references a cost proposal for three years. 
A: The County is considering/evaluating the three (3) year initial term contract and annual  
 pre-pricing. The Committee will address these issues during the pre-proposal 

meeting. 
 
Q: Section 5.1.00 Current Situation (page 13) 

Would it be possible to obtain one month of analysis statements for each department? 
A: See attached PDF files 
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Q: Section 5.1.01.1 Treasurer's Office (page 13). 
 

a. What is the average balance maintained in the Fireman's 1% Fund Account?  
$ 605,000.00 

b. What is the average balance maintained in the Installment Program Account? 
$ 69,000.00 
 

c. Which accounts are setup on Positive Pay?  
  Tax Holding 

 General 
 Debt Service 
 Property Tax Sale 
 Fireman’s 1% Fund 

 
d. How does the Treasurer's Office send their issue files to the bank? 

On-line banking portal daily. 
 

e. Are all accounts setup on the online banking portal?  The volume on page 14 
indicates that only 4 accounts are setup today.  Is that accurate? 

  Currently, all seven (7) bank accounts are set up for online banking.  The  
  four (4) bank accounts used in calculating compensating balances (Tax  
  Holding, Debt Service, General, and Property Tax Sale) are set up under a  
  Treasury Online Banking, giving these accounts more functionality.  In order 
  to save costs, the three (3) bank accounts not used in calculating   
  compensating balances (Installment, ACH, and Fire 1%) are set up under a  
  basic Business Online Banking with limited functionality. We would prefer  
  to have all Treasurer accounts accessed through one (1) online banking  
  portal. 
 
 
Q: Section 5.1.01.2 Clerk of Court (page 16). 

 
a. What are the annual average balances maintained in the sixty (60) interest bearing 

escrow accounts? 
$1,160,000.00 is the average balance in the escrow accounts.  Total average 
balance for all the Clerk of Court accounts is $2,400,000.00.  This amount 
has been changed since the original RFP – Section 5.1.01. 
 

b. How many debit cards are currently in use for child support payments?  Does the 
County administer these cards? 
Currently we’ve estimated about 10,000 debit cards.   
No, the County does not administer these cards. 
 

c. Are the ACH Originated Items associated with the child support payments?  How 
often are these items originated?  What is the maximum dollar amount per file 
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transmission for the ACH Originated Items?  Are these files sent via online 
banking or direct transmission (FTP)? 
Yes, the ACH Originated Items are associated with child support payments.  
They are originated every day.  The most recent large dollar amount is 
$142,000.  These files are uploaded through the online banking portal. 
 

d. Which accounts receive a CD Rom?  Are these accounts on the same CD or 
individual CDs?  Is a duplicate CD required? 
A CD Rom is currently received for the following accounts:   

 Jury Pay Account, Family Court Account, Bond Account, and Trust 
Account.  An individual CD is currently received for the Jury Pay Account 
and the Family Court Account.  The Bond Account and Trust Account are 
currently received on the same CD.  A duplicate CD is not required. 
 

e. Which account is setup on a full reconciliation?   
The Family Court Account.   
 

f. How does the County receive their full reconciliation at month-end? 
 By CD’s and Paper Statements. 
 
g. Which accounts are setup on a serial sort? 

The Return Check Account, Funds Held in Trust Account, MIE Unclaimed 
Surplus Funds Account. 
 

h. Which accounts are setup on positive pay?   
The Family Court Audit Account, Returned Check Account, Funds Held in 
Trust Account, MIE Unclaimed Surplus Funds Account, and the CP Bonds 
Account. 
 

i. Which accounts are setup with positive pay with recon?  What type of recon is 
being provided on these combinations? 
The Family Court Account. 
 

j. How are issue files sent to the bank (e.g. uploaded through online banking portal, 
sent via file transfer protocol (FTP), etc.)? 
Uploaded through online banking portal. 
 

k. Which accounts are setup with ACH Acct Block Service? 
The Jury Pay Account, Family Court Account, CP Bonds Account and the 
Trust Account. 
 

l. Which accounts are setup on the online banking portal?  Does the Clerk's office 
need to have online access for all accounts (including the escrow accounts)? 
All accounts except the escrow accounts are accessed through the online 
portal system. 
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Q: Section 5.1.01.3 Finance (pages 17-18). 
 

a. What is the maximum dollar amount of a bi-weekly payroll file for 1,500 
 employees on direct deposit? 

 $1,539,000.00. 
 

b.   How does the Finance Department send their payroll file to the bank (e.g. 
uploaded through online banking portal, sent via file transfer protocol (FTP), 
etc.)? 

 Through online banking portal - ACH import (NACHA file). 
 

c. Which accounts are setup on ACH Acct Block Service? 
 The Operating Account. 
 
d.  Which accounts are setup on Positive Pay? 

 The Employee Health Insurance Account and the Operating Account. 
 

e.  How often are the positive pay issue files sent to the bank? 
 Once per week for the Operating Account and twice per week for the 
 Insurance Account. 
 

f. How does Finance send their issue files to the bank? 
  Online Banking Portal. 

 
 

Q: Section 5.1.01.4 Lexington County Sherriff's Department (page 19). 
 

a. Does the Sheriff's Department or the County need access to the Sherriff's 
Department accounts online?  If so, which accounts need to be setup on online 
banking?   
No. 
 

b. If online banking is not needed, will you please explain the "Image Retrieval" 
service? 
Obtain images from bank branch research. 
 

c. Would the Sherriff's Department be interested in a Check Block Service to 
eliminate the risk of checks posting to their accounts?  Would the Sherriff's 
Department be interested in an ACH Block to prevent ACH Debits from posting 
to their accounts? 
No, not at this time. 
 

d. Can the County clarify the average balance of this department?  The balance 
 listed is $25,000; however, the Special Investigation Account allows officers to 
 withdraw up to $40,000. 



6 
 

The average balance for this department has been changed from the original 
RFP – Section 5.1.01.4.  It should be $280,000.00. 
 

 
Q: Section 5.1.01.5 Magistrate's Office (page 20) 

 
a. Does the Magistrate's Office or the County need access to the Magistrate's 

accounts online?  If so, which accounts need to be setup on online banking?  
No.  
 

b. Would the Magistrate's Office be interested in Positive Pay to eliminate the risk 
of fraudulent checks posting to their accounts?  Would the Magistrate's Office be 
interested in an ACH Block to prevent ACH Debits from posting to their 
accounts? 
No, not at this time. 
 
 

Q: Section 5.1.01.6 Library (page 21) 
 

a. Does the Library use location numbers on the deposit tickets to track the deposits 
made by the branches? 
The location numbers are not on the deposit tickets to track by branch.  
There is one (1) bank account number for the library system on the deposit 
slips and the Branch Librarians write the name of the branch on all deposit 
slips. 
 

b. Does the Library use Positive Pay to combat fraud on the refund payments issued 
for returned books that were previously reported lost or stolen?  If not, is the 
Library interested in this feature? 
No. 
 

c. Does the Library or the County need access to the Library's account online? 
No. 
 

d. Would the Library be interested in an ACH Block to prevent ACH Debits from 
posting to their accounts? 
No, not at this time. 

 
 
 

Q: Section 5.1.01.7 Register of Deeds (pages 21-22) 
 

a. Would it be possible to provide the average account balance? 
$8,000.00. 
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b. Does this account need to be setup on online banking? 

No. 
 

c. Does this account need fraud prevention services (positive pay and/or ACH 
Block)? 
No. 
 
 

Q: Section 5.2.02 General Deposit and Disbursement Services (page 22) 
 

a. Which accounts require MICR encoded deposit slips?  What is the annual volume 
of deposit tickets used by the County? 
All deposit accounts utilize MICR encoded deposit slips. 

• Treasurer’s annual volume of deposit tickets used is approximately 
1,000 combined for all accounts. 

• Clerk of Court – approximately 50,000 
• Magistrates – approximately 4,800 
• Library – approximately 3,000 

 
b. What is the annual number of depository bags used by the County? 

• The Clerk of Court has three locked bags.  The Clerk of Court will 
occasionally use the disposable bags for overflow. 

• The Magistrates use 2,000 disposable bags annually 
 
 

Q: Section 5.2.04 Electronic Transfer of Funds (page 23) 
 

a. Please clarify the number of employees paid bi-weekly.  Are there 
1,500employees (page 18) or 1,600 employees (page 23)? 
Approximately 1,500 employees 

 
b. Does the Treasurer's Office originate any ACH transactions?  If so, what type of 

ACH transactions are originated, and how often are these transactions sent? 
No, the Treasurer’s Office initiates wire transfers and account transfers only. 
 
 
 
 

Q: Section 5.2.11 Automated Teller Machines (page 24) 
 

a. Can the County provide any transactional reporting for the ATMs in the County 
Administration building and Judicial Center? 



8 
 

The County Administration building averages 585 transactions per month.  
Transactional reporting is not available for the Judicial Center ATM. 
 
 

Q: Section 5.2.12 Purchasing Cards (page 24) 
 

a. Does the County intend to expand the current purchasing card program beyond 
the usage of the Lexington County fire Services?  Would the County be looking 
to use the purchasing cards county-wide?  If so, how many card would be used, 
and what would be the estimated annual spend on this program? 

 The Purchasing card program identified in the RFP is for the Treasurer’s 
 Office  only to administer the Fireman’s 1% Fund.  The County did not 
 include the Procurement purchasing cards in this RFP. 

 
a. Who is the current purchasing card provider? 

BB&T 
 
 

Q: Section 5.2.13 Optional Services (page 25) 
 

a. Which locations will need to utilize the armored car service? 
The Clerk of Court has expressed an interest in this service.   The Clerk’s 
office is located at the Judicial Center at 205 East Main St, Lexington. 
 

b. How often would armored car servicing be needed for pick-ups and/or deliveries? 
 Once a day for pick-up only. 

 
b. What is the average dollar amount and maximum dollar amount of cash that 

would be picked up or delivered each day to or/from a location? 
 Average daily deposit of $100,000 

 
c. Would the County be able to separate the cash and checks for each deposit? 

Yes. 
 
 

Q: Section 5.5.0 Implementation Plan (page 25) 
 

a. The projected implementation start date is January 1, 2015.  What is the County's 
anticipated "go live" date for the services listed in the RFP to be up and running? 
The Committee will address this during the pre-proposal meeting - TBD (to 
be determined) 
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Q: Section VII: Cost Proposal 
 

a. Under the Maintenance Fee(s) line item –  
1) Clerk of Court is showing a volume of 191 accounts/year (16 

accounts/month).  According to the information provided, the Clerk of 
Court has 72 checking accounts.  If the sixty escrow accounts are 
excluded from the analysis, then should we change the annual volume 
from 191 to 144 (12 accounts/month)? 

      The Clerk of Court has 12 public checking accounts for a total volume 
of    144 accounts/year (12 accounts/month).  The remaining 60 escrow  
accounts are public savings accounts for a total volume of 720 
accounts/year (60 accounts/month). 

 
2) The Sherriff's Department is showing a volume of 48 accounts/year (4 

accounts/month).  According to the information provided, the Sherriff's 
Department has 7 checking accounts.  Are all of the Sherriff's 
Department's accounts on analysis, or are these accounts in other product 
types?   Should we change the annual volume from 48 to 84 (7 
accounts/month)? 
According to the analysis statements, only 4 accounts are receiving 
maintenance charges. 

 
3)   How often does the Finance Department send positive pay issue files? 

The volume is showing zero. 
The Finance Office uploads once a week for the Operating Account 
and twice a week for the Insurance. 

 
4) Under the Treasurer, the volume associated with remote deposit capture 

seems to vary between "Items Deposited (Remote Deposit Capture)" and 
"RDC Items Deposited".  Which volume is accurate and should be used on   
the cost proposal 130,196 or 130,441? 
This is the information reflected on the analysis statements.   
Use the 130,441 figure. 

 
5) Can the County clarify the annual average ledger balance for each 

department?  Would you provide the average collected balance for all 
departments? 
The average ledger balance is the average closing account balance 
over twelve months for all bank accounts associated with the 
individual departments. 
 

6) How many rolls of coin does the County order per month? 
• The Treasurer’s office obtains approximately 200 rolls of coin 

per month.  These orders are not placed in advance, but are 



10 
 

placed and collected at the time of the daily deposit at the bank 
branch.  

• The Magistrates obtains rolls of coins from the branches and 
the amount depends on the size of each docket.   

 
7) How many times does the County order cash per month? 

• The Treasurer’s Office orders small bills and rolled coin on a 
daily basis. These orders are not placed in advance, but are 
placed and collected at the time of the daily deposit at the bank 
branch. 

 
• The Magistrates obtains small denominations of cash 

(multiples of $1, $5, and $10’s) from the local branches based 
on the size of each docket. 

• The Library branches obtain cash from the local bank 
branches.  Volume depends on each library branch’s daily 
transactions.  The three large branch libraries go to the bank 
every day.  The medium and small branch libraries go to the 
bank twice a week. 

 
8) For the County’s Reconciliation Services, does the County send a file for 

each account on the same day or on the same file?   
The Full Reconciliation Services are utilized for one of the Clerk of 
Court’s accounts.  The Clerk’s Office sends a check issue file to the 
bank and the bank completes the reconciliation and sends back to the 
Clerk’s Office a monthly transmission of cleared and outstanding 
items. 

 
 

Q: Section IX: Calendar of Events (page 31) 
 

a. Would the County provide an extension on the due date to allow for a thorough 
response? 

  The current proposal due date remains unchanged and no extension is 
planned at this time. 
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4.2.03 The contractor shall take out and maintain, during the life of this contract, the statutory Workmen's 

Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of his employees to be engaged in work on 
the project under this contract, and in case any such work is sublet, the contractor shall require the 
subcontractor similarly to provide Workmen's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for 
all of the latter's employees to be engaged in such work. 

 
4.2.04 Other Insurance: This insurance is primary, and our obligations are not affected by any other 

insurance carried by the additional insured whether primary, excess, and contingent or on another 
basis. 

  
4.2.05 Each insurance required by the County of Lexington shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall 

not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the 
County of Lexington. 

 
4.2.06 Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insured under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be 
subject to all the requirements stated herein. 

   
4.2.07 All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by the County of Lexington within 

ten (10) days after notification of award. 
 
4.2.08 The County, its officers and employees shall be named as an “additional insured” in the Automobile 

and General Liability policies and it shall be stated on the Insurance Certificate with the provision 
that this coverage “is primary to all other coverage the County may possess”. 

 
4.3.00 SOCIAL SECURITY  
4.3.01 The contractor shall be and remain an independent contractor with respect to all services performed 

hereunder and agrees to and does hereby accept full and exclusive liabilities for the payment of any 
and all contributions or taxes for Social Security, unemployment insurance, or old age retirement 
benefits, pensions, or annuities now or hereafter imposed under any state or federal law which are 
measured by the wages, salaries, or other compensation paid to persons employed by the contractor 
or work performed under the terms of this award and further agrees to obey all lawful rules and 
regulations and to meet all lawful requirements which are now or hereafter may be issued or 
promulgated under said respective laws by duly authorized state and federal officials; and said 
contractor also agrees to indemnify and save harmless the County from any such contributions of 
taxes or liability hereof.  

 
4.4.00 WORKER'S COMPENSATION COVERAGE 
4.4.01 The contractor shall comply with the State law known as the Worker's Compensation Act.  The 

contractor shall maintain such insurance as will protect both contractor and the County from claims 
under Worker's Compensation Acts and from any other claims for damages for personal injury, 
including death, which may arise from operations under this contract, whether such operations are 
by the contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed in the work. 

 
4.5.00      TERM OF CONTRACT / OPTION TO EXTEND:   
   The County of Lexington is soliciting competitive proposals to establish a term contract for 

providing and delivering services and/or commodities listed herein. The term of the contract shall be 
for a three (3) year period, with the option to extend annually, for a total of eight (8) years. The 
County of Lexington may extend the contract if it appears to be in the best interest of the County and 
is agreeable with the contracted vendor.   
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4.5.01  CONTRACT ADJUSTMENTS:   
 Should an extension or revision be requested, written requests for contract revisions may be 

submitted in writing to the County of Lexington ninety (90) days prior to the end of the current 
contract period (initial contract period is defined as three (3) years).  These requests shall be 
forwarded by registered mail to ensure delivery.  The County reserves the right to accept or decline 
any requested revision.  Any requested revision shall be accompanied by supportive documentation. 
 The County of Lexington will accept or decline the requests for a contract revision, in written form, 
within thirty (30) days following the date of the request.  No revision shall be effective until 
approved in writing by the Procurement Manager. 
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5.1.01.2 Clerk of Court 
 
1. Bond Account – bond postings for General Sessions court; 
2. Family Court Account – currently utilizes debit card service for child support payments. Information 

reporting on active and inactive cards balances is required for this service; 
3. Jury Account – Basic checking account to make juror payments; 
4. Trust Account; 
5. Eight (8) other basic checking accounts for various Clerk of Court functions; and 
6. Separate interest bearing escrow accounts established for specific court cases.  The amount of active 

accounts varies; currently, there are approximately sixty (60) escrow accounts.  Additional escrow 
accounts will need to be provided as needed. One deposit is made to an account and funds stays in that 
account until disbursed with one check and closed. 

 
The Clerk of Court utilizes night depository services. 

 
The average available balance for this department is $2,400,000.00 

 
Reference the attached chart for the type and volume of services used for the Clerk of Court’s accounts.  
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5.1.01.4 Lexington County Sheriff’s Department 
 
The Sheriff’s Department operates several checking accounts that need deposit and check writing functions.  
 
1. Seizure Funds Account – Non-narcotic seizures or found property; 
2. Narcotic Seizure Funds Account – Trust fund for narcotic related seizures; 
3. Narcotics Buy Money Account – Buy Money and informant’s expenses.  This account would require 

ATM accessibility to the Sheriff’s Department.  ATM cards should be issued in the Sheriff’s 
Department name to be utilized by individual officers as needed; 

4. Special Investigation Account – Flash money for large drug investigations.  This account allows 
officers to withdrawal up to $40,000 in cash as needed and redeposit within 48 hours; 

5. Civil Process and Warrants Account – Collection and disbursement of civil processing and warrant 
fees; 

6. Unclaimed Inmate Commissary Funds Account; and  
7. Detention Center Inmate Worker Compensation Account – Used to pay inmate worker compensation. 
 
Section 44-53-520 (i) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina requires seizure funds to be deposited into 
an interest bearing account.  

 
The average available balance for this department is $280,000.00. 
 
Reference the chart below for the type and volume of services used for Sheriff’s accounts. 
 
 

Estimated Annual Activity ‐ Sheriff (7 Accounts) 
Deposits Per Year  12  
Items Deposited Per Year  531  
Image Retrieval  343  
Coin & Currency Deposited  $42,745  

(END) 
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